
      

SAN FRANCISCO BAY TRAIL  
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, November 7, 2016  10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.  
Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, Suite 700 

Room 7301 Mt. Diablo 
 

 
AGENDA  

The Board may act on any item on this agenda.  Attachment included* 

 
     
10:00 a.m.  Call to Order   
     
  Adoption of agenda and approval of 7/18/16 minutes*   
     
10:05 a.m.  Announcements by Chair and Boardmembers   
     
10:15 a.m.  Staff Announcements   
     
10:30 a.m.  ABAG‐MTC Merger Discussion*  Staff / Board     
     
  Update on the ABAG‐MTC staff integration process and 

check‐in with the Committee on program structure, 
new opportunities and future needs.  

 

     
11:30 a.m.  Reflecting on 2016 and Looking Ahead to 2017*  Staff / Board 
     
  Review 2016 annual report and status of 2016 priority 

tasks. Also consider and adopt priority tasks for 2017. 
 

     
12:00 p.m.  Adjourn Meeting   
     

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

San Francisco Bay Trail  
Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 

Bay Area Metro Center 
July 18, 2016 

 
 

Call to Order  
 
Meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. 

 
Attendance 
   

Steering Committee        Bay Trail Staff       
John Woodbury, Chair        Ben Botkin 
Julie Bondurant, Co‐Chair      Lee Huo       
Juan Raigoza          Laura Thompson 
 
Board            Guests       
Bruce Beyaert          Ina Gerhard, Caltrans 
            Michael Williams, City of Richmond 
            Kelly Malinowski, Coastal Conservancy 
               
ACTION:  Adoption of the 7/18/16 agenda and the 5/2/15 minutes: Julie moved, Juan 
seconded.   

  
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Juan Raigoza   

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
Announcements by Chair and Boardmembers 
 
‐Beyaert   Announced the July 16 dedication of the El Toro sculpture at Boat Ramp Street 

celebrating the creation of this boat in Richmond. There are six active projects along the 
last remaining 10 miles of Bay Trail in Richmond that includes 6 miles of trail. Two 
projects are in the late stages of completion. In addition, 4.3 miles on the Richmond‐San 
Rafael Bridge will be completed in 2017. 

 
‐Woodbury  Announced that AB 2444 passed through the Assembly to the Senate and has a good 

chance to be on the June 2018 ballot. The current draft includes an emphasis on funding 
urban parks, focusing on disadvantages communities. Specific funding may be identified 
for the Bay Area Conservancy Program. Napa County will propose a ¼‐cent sales tax on 
the November ballot for parks, open space and watershed preservation. Requires a 2/3 
vote in the county. 

 
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Staff Announcements 
 
‐Thompson  Provided a brief overview of the agency move and ABAG/MTC staff merger process.  

During the week of May 9th, 5 new miles were added to the Bay Trail, including 
segments at Eden Landing (Hayward), Sears Point (Sonoma County) and Christie Avenue 
(Emeryville), bringing us to the milestone of 350 miles. On May 20, we celebrated 4 
miles of resurfaced Bay Trail between Sunnyvale and Mountain View, courtesy of 
Google. The event was hosted by board member Julia Miller, and speakers included 
Congresswoman Eshoo, John Igoe of Google, Chris Barr of USFWS, Lockheed Martin, 
Julie Pierce of ABAG, and staff of Supervisor Cortese’s office. There were many partners 
in attendance. After several years on the Bay Trail board and steering committee, 
Maggie Wenger has left BCDC and with Betsy Wilson leaving the Coastal Conservancy, 
we have two vacancies to fill on the steering committee and board of directors at the 
fall meeting.  

 
‐Huo  Announced that 62 Active Transportation Program applications were submitted to MTC, 

and some are Bay Trail related. Mentioned a Trails Collaborative discussion about MTC 
funding and creating a web portal for collection of regional trail count data. Only 
$60,000 was dedicated for bike counts last year and the trails community is hopeful that 
MTC will be supportive of expanding funding. Announced that PedalFest is back at Jack 
London Square this Saturday, July 23 11am – 7pm, celebrating bicycling of all forms.  

   
‐Botkin  Announced that the Bay Trail’s Explore the Coast grant is moving forward on five new 

audio tours, working again with Canogle and Doug McConnell. Provided an update on a 
new Bay Trail section at India Basin/900 Innes in the works with a proposed cycletrack 
and shoreline alignment. 

 
City of Napa: Stanly Lane Spur Design ($100,000) 
 
Thompson introduced the item and provided an overview of the grant application and funding request. 
Members of the committee expressed support for the private contributions lined up for the 
construction phase.  
 
ACTION:  Bondurant moved, Raigoza seconded the motion to award a grant to the City of Napa 

in the amount of $100,000 to complete design and construction documents for a 0.6‐
mile trail section extending the Stanly Lane trail to the Napa River. The vote was 
approved unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Juan Raizgoza   

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

City of Vallejo: Vallejo Bluff Trail Design & Engineering ($125,000) 
 
Thompson introduced the item and provided an overview of the grant application and funding request. 
Members of the committee expressed enthusiasm for this project and recognized that staff has been 
working towards this goal for a long time.  
 
ACTION:  Bondurant moved, Raigoza seconded the motion to award a grant to the City of 

Vallejo in the amount of $125,000 to complete design and engineering for the 1.5‐mile 
Vallejo Bluff Trail. The vote was approved unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Juan Raizgoza   

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
City of Richmond: Goodrick Avenue Construction ($130,000) 
 
Huo introduced the item and provided an overview of the grant application and funding request. Huo 
clarified that environmental designation is expected in October and the project could possibly be 
constructed as part of the Breuner Marsh project that is underway, but it is potentially outside of East 
Bay Regional Park District jurisdiction. Once constructed, this segment will complete a continuous Bay 
Trail from Point Pinole to the Oakland waterfront, also connecting to the Bay Bridge.  
 
In response to committee questions about the high cost of project, City of Richmond project manager 
Michael Williams stated that engineering over Chevron pipelines, anticipated cultural resources and 
wetlands/drainages issues contribute to the higher estimated cost.  
 
ACTION:  Raigoza moved, Woodbury seconded the motion to award a grant to the City of 

Richmond in the amount of $130,000 to construct a 0.3‐mile section of Bay Trail along 
Goodrick Avenue between Breuner Marsh and the Richmond Parkway. The vote was 
approved unanimously. 

 
Yes Votes: 

John Woodbury  Julie Bondurant 
Juan Raizgoza   

 
No Votes: None 
Abstentions: None 
 
Migrations Check‐In 
 
Thompson provided an overview of progress on the Migrations public art initiative. The Committee 
discussed a proposal to request funds from local jurisdictions to pay into a regional roll‐out of Fireflies. 
The Committee expressed hesitancy about asking shoreline cities for contribution to a project that they 
do not have local control over. Concern over equity was also raised if the same funding amounts were 
asked of cities with disparate economic capacities. There was also expressed concern about the width of 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

the vehicles conflicting with other trail users. Encouraged Fireflies in areas where concessions are 
already in place, such as along the Embarcadero in San Francisco. The committee encouraged Fireflies as 
part of shoreline festivals that are already taking place with support from local jurisdictions rather than 
new events created from scratch.  
 
The Committee was enthusiastic about private sector funding of Migrations projects, including adding 
“license plates” to Fireflies vehicles recognizing donors.  Other funding ideas include adding an art 
component to our construction grant criteria to encourage grant recipients building large Bay Trail 
sections to work art into their project scopes; encouraged working with established art museums such 
as SFMOMA and Exploratorium that have a history of outdoor public art; tie art into the discussion of 
sea level rise and coordinate with BCDC’s adapting to rising tides work.  
 
The Committee was supportive of taking an inventory of existing public art along the Bay Trail as a way 
to develop momentum for art on a regional scale.  
 
Adjournment  The meeting was adjourned at 10:50 a.m. 
 



 Page 1 of 2 

 

 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    October 31, 2016 
 
To:    Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Subject:  ABAG‐MTC Merger Discussion  
 

 
As we move towards the integration of Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) staff in 2017, now is a good time to check in 
with the Bay Trail Steering Committee to share what we know and seek feedback on potential 
opportunities. Miriam Chion, ABAG’s Planning and Research Director will join our meeting for 
this discussion. This is a complex agency merger process that I am overly simplifying here for 
the purposes of our discussion. 
 
In May 2015, the two agencies voted to support a full functional consolidation of ABAG and 
MTC staff with consideration of new governance options. The ABAG‐MTC Merger 
Implementation Action Plan (IAP) maps out a series of steps to complete staff integration in the 
short‐term and consider new agency governance options in the long‐term.  
 
Several of these steps are underway, including financial, legal and human resource review, 
ultimately leading to a “contract for services” approved by the ABAG Executive Board and the 
MTC Commission. This contract will be the guiding document for how the two agencies will 
work together ensuring both ABAG’s and MTC’s missions and obligations are met under 
consolidation. The contract must be agreed upon by both boards before staff integration can 
occur. The current IAP schedule shows an expected transition of ABAG employees to MTC in 
February or March 2017, but it could be pushed later into the year.  
 
Interviews are underway this week to hire an organizational consultant that will help inform the 
integration of MTC’s Planning Section and ABAG’ Planning and Research Department into one 
unified regional planning program. All four Bay Trail and Water Trail planners are part of the 
Planning and Research Department. While the details are not yet known about how the new 
planning department will be structured or how the priorities of the division will be determined, 
we expect that the non‐profit Bay Trail Board of Directors will remain intact and staff will 
continue to provide dedicated support for the implementation of the Bay Trail.  We also expect 
that staff will continue to facilitate the completion of the Water Trail under the active Coastal 
Conservancy block grant.  
 



 Page 2 of 2 

 

Attached is a summary of the current work conducted by our four‐person team, highlighting 
Bay Trail, Water Trail and Priority Conservation Area programs as background for the 
discussion. The 2013‐2018 Bay Trail Strategic Plan is also enclosed.  
 
For the purposes of Monday’s discussion, we would like the Committee to consider the 
following topics. This conversation will help staff provide input on the functionality of an 
integrated planning department as we move through the process.  
 

 Structure. The San Francisco Bay Trail Project is a non‐profit 501(c)(3) corporation with a 
32‐member board of directors that is staffed by ABAG. The bylaws directly tie the non‐
profit corporation to ABAG and its Executive Board. Bay Trail operation costs are 
financed through MTC’s regional toll bridge grant program. The lead Water Trail planner 
is also staffed by ABAG through a separate Coastal Conservancy grant. Consider this 
structure and how it facilitates implementation of the Bay Trail and Water Trail 
missions. 

 

 Regional Trail Program. Earlier this year, Bay Trail and Ridge Trail staff created a 
proposed concept of an integrated regional trail program comprised of Bay Trail, Water 
Trail and Ridge Trail under consolidated oversight within the reconfigured regional 
agency. All three trails are designated Priority Conservation Areas and have a collection 
of unique and shared challenges. Consideration of this consolidation concept is long 
term, but relevant to how we might strengthen our collaboration and build in 
efficiencies over time.    
 

 Active Transportation. MTC employs an active transportation planner who is responsible 
for managing the region‐wide bike share program, the complete streets checklist and 
the Active Transportation Working Group, among other duties. Consider how our trail 
work and the Active Transportation program could be integrated and how that might 
inform trail/bike/ped planning and progress on regional trails in the Bay Area.   
 

 Future Needs. Thinking beyond the timeframe of our Strategic Plan, consider what our 
programs need in order to realize regional visions through local implementation. 
Consider the resources needed to advance completion of the Bay Trail and the Water 
Trail in an environment of competitive funding and increasingly challenging projects.  

 
 



  Page 1 of 3 
 

Regional Trails & Open Space Program 
San Francisco Bay Trail – San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail – Priority Conservation Areas 

 
The San Francisco Bay Trail, the San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail and the Priority Conservation 
Area program are  regional projects  coordinated by ABAG and  implemented by  local agencies 
and organizations to advance the protection and stewardship of natural resources and expand 
the  system  of  urban  trails,  parks  and  bikeways  to  increase  the  quality  of  life,  health  and 
economic prosperity of the region.  
 
San  Francisco  Bay  Trail  –  The  Bay  Trail  is  a  visionary  plan  for  a  continuous  bicycle  and 
pedestrian  path  along  the  shoreline  that  will  one  day  allow  continuous  travel  around  San 
Francisco Bay, extending over 500 miles to  link the shoreline of nine counties, passing through 
47 cities and crossing seven toll bridges. Over 350 miles have been completed and are in use for 
recreation and active  transportation, and 4½ of  the  region’s  seven  toll bridges accommodate 
the Bay Trail. With more than 2.7 million people living within 2 miles of the Bay Trail, it serves as 
a  primary  corridor  for  a  significant  portion  of  the  region’s  population,  connecting  to 
neighborhoods, schools, employment centers, parks and transit centers. ABAG administers the 
project and provides regional leadership for its completion and MTC provides funding for overall 
administration.   
 
The Bay Trail Strategic Plan, adopted by the Bay Trail Board of Directors in 2013, identifies five 
major objectives for implementation: 
 

 Provide  funding  to  implementing  agencies  in  order  to  significantly  advance  the 
development of the Bay Trail alignment 
 

o Since 1999, the State Coastal Conservancy has allocated over $22 million in state 
funds to ABAG, managed by Bay Trail staff as grants to local jurisdictions resulting 
in over 210 miles of trail planned, designed and constructed. 
 

 Explore outside funding sources that will continue to close gaps and substitute for grant 
funds that may no longer be available 

 
o Bay Trail planners help  identify and secure a wide variety of public and private 

funding for specific trail planning and construction projects.  
 

 Provide technical assistance to implementing agencies and other appropriate entities to 
support development of the Bay Trail consistent with the adopted Bay Trail Plan 
 

o Bay  Trail  staff  frequently  participates  in  local  development  review,  serves  on 
bicycle/pedestrian  plan  committees  and  assists  shoreline  land  managers  in 
improving their trail development capacities with resources such as the Bay Trail 
Design Guidelines & Toolkit and the Bay Trail Gap Analysis. 
 



  Page 2 of 3 
 

 Strengthen partnerships with decision‐makers and key constituencies 
 

o The Bay Trail Project has established strong partnerships with corporations such 
as Google, PG&E and Cargill as well as with elected officials and governing bodies 
throughout the region. 

 

 Promote awareness of the Bay Trail to increase use and build support for its completion  
 

o The program supports trail dedications and public events and provides a variety 
of  Bay  Trail  public  outreach  tools,  including  an  informative website,  Bay  Trail 
maps,  smart phone  tours,  the San Francisco Bay Shoreline Guide,  social media 
postings, t‐shirts, caps and bicycle jerseys. 

 
San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail – The Water Trail  is a growing network of  launching and 
landing sites, or “trailheads,” around San Francisco Bay. Each trailhead enables non‐motorized 
small  boat  users  to  enjoy  the  historic,  scenic,  cultural  and  environmental  richness  of  San 
Francisco Bay and  its nearby  tributary waters. The Water Trail promotes safe and  responsible 
use  of  the  Bay while  protecting  and  increasing  appreciation  of  its  environmental  resources 
through education and strategic planning. The Water Trail’s network of sites encourages people 
to explore the Bay  in different boat types, such as kayaks, sailboards, dragon boats, and stand 
up  paddleboards,  and  in  a  variety  of  settings  through  single  and multi‐day  trips.  Potentially, 
more  than  100  existing  marinas,  waterfront  parks,  and  other  publicly  accessible  sites  will 
become part of the Water Trail. 
 
The Water Trail program  is  funded  through a State Coastal Conservancy block grant  to ABAG 
that identifies four primary implementation tasks: 
 

 Manage and  implement site‐specific enhancement projects through grants to shoreline 
managers 

 
o Water  Trail  grants  are  available  to  local  jurisdictions  for  site  enhancement 

projects  such  as purchase  and  installation of dock  systems  and  gangways,  site 
design or construction of transfer systems between water and shore that allow 
those with  limited mobility  to  use  and  enjoy  these  publicly  funded  resources. 
Seven grants totaling over $660,000 have been awarded to shoreline managers 
for site improvements. 
 

 Obtain formal support from local jurisdictions and assist shoreline managers of potential 
Water Trail sites in preparation for official site designation 

 
o Twenty‐nine  of  the  100+  existing  launch  sites  in  the  Bay  have  been  officially 

designated as Water Trail sites with a dozen or more sites being added yearly.  
 

 Advance  the goals  of  the  education,  outreach and  stewardship program by updating, 



  Page 3 of 3 
 

maintaining and distributing various outreach tools, developing new outreach strategies 
and promoting the Water Trail at events and conferences 

 
o Education  is a  cornerstone of  the Water Trail mission. The Water Trail website 

provides  information  on  each  designated  site,  including  details  about  parking, 
launch fees, where to rent boats, etc., and through other means such as on‐site 
signage, maps, brochures  and participation  in  a wide  variety of events  region‐
wide,  the  program  educates  users  and  the  public  about  safety  and  wildlife 
protection. 

 

 Provide oversight of the mitigation, monitoring and reporting program developed as part 
of the Water Trail Final EIR 
 

o The Water Trail’s Project Management Team consists of representatives from the 
Coastal Conservancy, ABAG, the Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
and  the  State Division  of  Boating  and Waterways.  Site  designation within  the 
Water  Trail program  requires  its  staff  and  advisors  to  address  a wide  range of 
principles,  including non‐motorized  small boating  access onto  the Bay; wildlife 
and habitat  resource protection; personal and navigational  safety and  security; 
and education, outreach, and stewardship. 
 

Priority Conservation Areas — Priority Conservation Areas (PCAs) are open spaces that provide 
agricultural,  natural  resource,  scenic,  recreational,  urban  greening  and/or  ecological  values. 
These areas are identified through consensus by local jurisdictions and park/open space districts 
as lands in need of protection due to pressure from urban development or other factors. PCAs 
are  categorized by  four designations: Natural  Landscapes, Agricultural  Lands, Urban Greening 
and Regional Recreation. ABAG staff is responsible for the designation process and assists MTC 
and the Coastal Conservancy in administering the grant program.  
 
PCAs  are  a  component  of Plan Bay Area,  the  integrated  long‐range  transportation  and  land‐
use/housing plan for the San Francisco Bay Area. 165 PCAs representing a variety of landscapes 
in all nine Bay Area counties have been adopted by the ABAG Executive Board. Projects located 
within  these areas are eligible  for  funding  through  the One Bay Area Grant  (OBAG) program. 
The  first OBAG  grant  program was  launched  by MTC  in  2013,  in  partnership with  the  State 
Coastal Conservancy resulting in 23 funded projects totaling $11.9 million. The next grant round 
is expected to begin in 2017.  
 
 
 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

San	Francisco	Bay	Trail	Project	Strategic	Plan	
2013	–	2018																			

Mission	
The San Francisco Bay Trail Project advocates  for  the  implementation of a continuous  recreation and 
transportation path around San Francisco Bay by coordinating the efforts of government agencies and 
other  partners,  providing  technical  assistance,  seeking  and  administering  funding  and  promoting  the 
trail’s benefits through education and outreach. 

Vision	
San Francisco Bay is ringed by a continuous recreational corridor made up of hundreds of miles of safe, 
pleasant and attractive  trails  that serve a wide  range of users.   This network, known as  the Bay Trail, 
almost always runs along the shoreline and typically travels on separated paths.   The Bay Trail  is used 
extensively for recreation, as a commute route, and as a setting for learning about nature.  It crosses the 
region’s  toll  bridges  and  reinforces  transit  use  by  passing  near many  public  transportation  facilities.  
Along it are found many points of historic, natural, cultural and recreational interest.  The Bay Trail has 
expanded  the  public’s  access  to  the  shoreline,  increased  appreciation  for  the  bay,  fostered  local 
economic development and waterfront planning, and  reinforced  the Bay Area’s  sense of  regionalism. 
The Bay Trail  is acknowledged as a uniquely valuable resource, and enjoys  the unwavering support of 
government agencies and the public. 
 
To  accomplish  these  goals,  the  Bay  Trail  Board  and  staff  will  pursue  the  following  Strategic  Plan 
Objectives during the next five‐year period. 

Objective	1.		Provide	funding	to	implementing	agencies	in	order	to	
significantly	advance	the	development	of	the	Bay	Trail	alignment	

 
a) Award  and  administer  grants  to 

implementing agencies for all aspects of Bay 
Trail development 

The Bay Trail Grant Program, in partnership with 
the  State  Coastal  Conservancy,  is  a  significant 
resource for trail completion that relies on state 
bond  funds.    An  additional  $1  million  will  be 
allocated  from  the  Coastal  Conservancy  in 
December  2013  with  no  additional  allocations 
on the horizon. 

b) Seek  operation  and  maintenance  funding 
solutions 

Local  jurisdictions and park districts are seeking 
a  steady  source  of  funding  for  trail  operation 
and maintenance.    Staff  continues  to  work  to 
develop solutions to this funding need. 
 

c) Revisit long term funding strategy annually  Staff reviews funding needs periodically with the 
board, project sponsors and partners. 

 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

Objective	2.		Explore	outside	funding	sources	that	will	continue	to	close	gaps	
and	substitute	for	grant	funds	that	may	no	longer	be	available	
 

a)  Seek  options  for  leveraging  public  funding, 
i.e. transportation, recreation, health, climate 
change and sustainable communities 

Use the Gap Analysis to set strategic priorities and 
determine funding needs; coordinate with 
congestion management agencies (CMAs) on 
transportation funds for trail development; and 
engage in the Sustainable Communities Strategy, 
Priority Development Area and Priority 
Conservation Area programs.   
 

b)  Explore opportunities for private funding and 
partnerships 

Develop  partnerships  with  corporations  located 
along the shoreline for general Bay Trail support or 
project‐specific assistance. 

Objective	3.		Provide	technical	assistance	to	implementing	agencies	and	other	
appropriate	entities	to	support	development	of	the	Bay	Trail	consistent	with	
the	adopted	Bay	Trail	Plan	

 

a) Assist  regional  partners  and  local 
jurisdictions in assessing and addressing the 
impacts of sea level rise on the Bay Trail  

Staff  participates  in  regional  and  sub‐regional 
initiatives to address the impacts of sea level rise 
on  the Bay  Trail and  to  ensure  that adaptation 
strategies include the Bay Trail. 

b) Update  and maintain  the  Gap  Analysis  to 
provide  the  status  of  remaining  gaps,  cost 
estimates and a timeline for completion   

The  Gap  Analysis  and  the  corresponding  GIS‐
based Bay Trail alignment are updated regularly 
as a tool for assessing the remaining gaps. 

c) Refine  the  recommended  Bay  Trail  design 
standards  regarding  width,  signage, 
surfacing  and  other  aspects  of  trail  design 
and development 

A  grant  from  the  Coastal  Conservancy  was 
awarded  to  the Bay Trail Project  to update  the 
design  guidelines.    Work  on  this  project  will 
begin in 2013. 

d) Assist  understaffed  local  agencies  in 
improving  their  trail‐development 
capacities 

This is an ongoing task for Bay Trail staff in areas 
where  communities  are  challenged  with  staff 
reductions. 

e) Participate  in  local development  review  to 
ensure optimum inclusion of the Bay Trail in 
relevant development projects 

Staff  regularly  comments  on  environmental 
documents,  participates  in  technical  advisory 
committees  and  bicycle  plan  task  forces  and 
provides public testimony at BCDC Design Review 
Board and Commission meetings. 

f) Participate  in  trail  planning  efforts  led  by 
other agencies 

Staff  participates  in  the  development  of  local 
bicycle/pedestrian  and  trail  plans,  regional 
planning  initiatives  and  partnerships  to  move 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

completion of the trail forward. 

g) Encourage  other  agencies  to  incorporate 
the  Bay  Trail  into  their  missions,  plans, 
programs, projects and policies 

Collaboration  with  shoreline  agencies  is  an 
ongoing process. 

Objective	4.		Strengthen	partnerships	with	decision‐makers	and	key‐
constituencies		

 

a) Produce  an  annual  report  that  details  the 
major  accomplishments  of  the  Bay  Trail 
Project  and  progress  on  the  development 
of  the  Bay  Trail,  including  legislative 
delegation as target audience 
 

An  annual  report  is  produced  for  ABAG’s work 
plan at the beginning of each calendar year.      It 
has  not  been  forwarded  to  the  legislative 
delegation in the past.  

b) Develop Bay  Trail  legislative  champions  at 
the state level 

The  project  has  a  history  of  success with  state 
legislative champions.     

c) Provide  frequent  recognition of supportive 
elected officials and dedicated advocates 

Supportive elected officials have been recognized 
in the past. 

d) Enhance  the  role  of  the  Bay  Trail  in 
protecting  natural  and  cultural  resources 
and promoting conservation‐related values 

 Fund  demonstration  projects  that 
exhibit  innovative  trail  designs  to 
protect natural resources 

 Extend and possibly expand the scope of 
the Wildlife and Public Access Study 

 Increase appreciation of the bay and  its 
natural  resources  by  such  means  as 
interpretive signage and route guides 

 

Several public resources have been developed to 
promote the Bay Trail’s role in promoting support 
for bay conservation, including the San Francisco 
Bay  Shoreline  Guide,  the  Bay  Trail  map  set, 
birding brochures, Bay Nature magazine articles 
and the Wildlife & Public Access Study. 

e) Work  with  state  and  federal  resource 
agencies  and  open  space  and  recreation 
advocates and partners  to  integrate public 
access  and  resource  protection  goals  and 
mandates 

This  is carried out along specific segments of the 
Bay  Trail  such  as  the  South  Bay  Salt  Pond 
Restoration  Project  and  the  Don  Edwards  San 
Francisco  Bay  National  Wildlife  Refuge.  More 
work  is  needed  to  integrate  these  two  goals 
around the bay. 

f) Collaborate/cultivate  partnerships  on  trail 
issues of mutual  interest and benefit  such 
as  alternative  transportation,  health  and 
recreation,  trails  as  a  desirable  feature  of 

Staff  works  with  MTC,  bicycle  coalitions  and 
CMAs  on  elevating  the  Bay  Trail  as  a  non‐
motorized  transportation  corridor.    The  project 
can  benefit  from  cultivating  partnerships  in  the 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

new developments, etc.  health field.   Staff regularly  interacts with public 
agency  staff and BCDC about  the Bay Trail as a 
feature of new development. 

g) Communicate  frequently  with  property 
owners,  public  and  private,  along  the 
proposed Bay Trail route to remind them of 
our mission and enlist support 

Interactions with property owners along Bay Trail 
gaps  occur  primarily  as  development  proposals 
are  initiated and also as  feasibility analysis near 
private  lands.   A more proactive approach could 
lead to increased support.  

h) Collaborate  with  other  regional  trail 
projects to increase support for the bay and 
other regional trails.   

Partner  with  Ridge  Trail,  Vine  Trail  and Water 
Trail  to  strengthen  effectiveness  on  common 
objectives. 

Objective	5.		Promote	awareness	of	the	Bay	Trail	to	increase	use	and	build	
support	for	its	completion	
 
a) Develop a Bay Trail Marketing Plan  Clearly show the steps that will be taken to meet 

the marketing objectives of the project.    Identify 
target audiences, key messages and tasks. 

b) Produce  updated  maps  of  the  Bay  Trail 
alignment for the public 
 

In May 2013,  the Bay Trail maps were  released 
to the public  in two formats: a physical map set 
in  the  form  of  a  deck  of  cards  and  an  online 
interactive  map.    The  online  maps  are  also 
available on mobile phones.   These maps are  in 
GIS  format  and  will  be  updated  on  a  more 
regular basis. 

c) Work  with  implementing  agencies  to 
ensure  that all developed  segments of  the 
Bay  Trail  are  signed,  and  in  a  consistent 
manner 

The Bay Trail Sign Program is a work in progress.  
Site  visits  have  been  conducted  and  sign  plans 
have  been  created  for  most  sections  of 
completed  trail around  the bay.   Over 100 new 
signs  have  been  placed  in  the  field  and  staff 
continues  to  contact  shoreline  managers  to 
install new signs. 

d) Encourage  individual  and  group  events  to 
draw attention to the Bay Trail 

During  the  Bay  Trail  Project’s  20th  Anniversary 
year,  we  co‐sponsored  several  events  with 
shoreline partners.   We also organized nine bike 
rides  around  the  region  for  the  board  of 
directors.    2014 will mark  our  25th  anniversary 
and  an  opportunity  for  using  new  strategies  to 
reach a wider audience such as blogs and social 
media rather than special event trail days.  

e) Develop  attractive  and  effective 
promotional materials using traditional and 

The  San  Francisco  Bay  Shoreline  Guide  was 
updated  and  released  in  2012  as  a  UC  Press 



 

2013 – 2018 San Francisco Bay Trail Strategic Plan 

new technologies.   publication.    The  new  Bay  Trail  maps  and 
brochure were made available  in May 2013 and 
will be used as promotional tools.   The Bay Trail 
has  a  Facebook  page.    Looking  ahead,  the 
website  needs  to  be  completely  updated  and  a 
digital  newsletter  can  reach  a  wider  audience 
with more up‐to‐date information. 
 

f) Improve outreach to special groups such as 
seniors, children and school groups 

Many programs are already available  to  special 
groups around  the  region.   Bay Trail can match 
existing  programs with  Bay  Trail messages  and 
provide  materials,  such  as  maps  at  the 
Exploratorium  and  brochures  at  the  Palo  Alto 
EcoCenter. 

g) Develop  a  list  server  for  communicating 
with Bay Trail advocates 

Consider  a  list  server  as  a  new  tool  for  public 
communication, replacing the newsletter. 

 

Objective	6.		Increase	the	organizational	capacity	of	the	Bay	Trail	Project	by	
enhancing	the	effectiveness	of	its	staff	and	board	of	directors	

 

a) Activate  the  Bay  Trail  Project’s  board  of 
directors and seek additional members who 
represent  new  or  under‐represented 
constituencies 

Consider  environmental  groups,  under‐
represented  geographic  and  trail  gap  areas, 
utility representatives, shoreline‐related business 
and  development  as well  as  board  composition 
that  can  assist  with  a  changing  funding 
landscape.   

Adding capacity to the board  is under discussion 
with  the  Steering  Committee  and  the  Board  of 
Directors to address the public funding reduction.

 

b) Retain  sufficient  staff  to  implement  the 
organization's  mission/strategic  plan  and 
provide staff development opportunities  

The  current  staff  capacity  is  sufficient  to 
implement  the  organization’s  mission  and 
strategic plan. 

c) Make  use  of    volunteer  and  pro‐bono 
services for the Bay Trail Project 

Creative  involvement  of  skilled  volunteers,  i.e. 
bloggers,  photographers,  can  expand  staff 
capacity. 

d) Develop  Bay  Trail  advocacy  and 
stewardship  teams  focused  on  cities, 
counties  or  specific  trail  projects  or 
segments 

More  involvement  from  the  Board  of  Directors 
can help address this need. 

 



   
    

 
MEMO 
 
 
Date:    October 31, 2016 
 
To:    Bay Trail Steering Committee 
 
From:    Laura Thompson 
 
Subject:  Reflecting on 2016 and Looking Ahead to 2017 
 

 
It’s time again to look back at the year and reflect on what we have accomplished.  Attached is 
a chronological list of milestones and major accomplishments for the Bay Trail and the Water 
Trail in 2016.  If something has been left out, please let me know so it can be updated.  
 
Since the Board adopted the 5‐year Bay Trail Strategic Plan in 2013, we have identified priority 
tasks for each calendar year as a roadmap for us to follow.  Attached are the 2016 Priority Bay 
Trail Tasks with notes on status of completion and a proposed list of priority tasks for 2017.  
The Steering Committee should consider this list of tasks for the upcoming year and 
revise/approve.  
 
 
 
 



2016 Priority Bay Trail Tasks – Status of Completion  
 

 

Task  Responsible Entity  Notes 

1)  Manage active planning and construction 
grants and work with the Coastal Conservancy to 
award contracts under block grant 

Board / Staff / Partners  Forty‐three grants were awarded under Block Grant #4 ($6 
million).Thirty‐nine projects are closed out and the four are in final 
stages of completion. Twelve projects have been awarded under 
Block Grant #5 ($1 million) to spend down this grant. One project is 
complete and the remaining projects are underway. 
 

2)  Explore outside funding sources that will 
continue to close gaps and substitute for grant 
funds that may no longer be available 

Staff / Board  Measure AA‐Restoration Authority funds will be awarded to 
restoration and public access projects in early 2018. Priority 
Conservation Area (PCA) funds will be awarded in 2017. Recently 
completed Bay Trail‐Ridge Trail GHG emission demonstration study 
may better position regional trails for new funding sources.  
Possible Regional Measure 3 and 2018 Park Bond would provide 
additional funds. 
 

3)  Expand partnerships with private 
corporations for specific gap closures 

Staff / Board  Partnership with Google has expanded with completion of Phase I  
Bay Trail improvement in the South Bay and award of a $15,000 
grant to Bay Trail non‐profit for a new smart phone tour. 
Partnerships with PG&E, Facebook and Cargill continue.  
 

4)  Participate in sea level rise working groups 
around the region and provide input on climate 
action plans 

Staff  Staff continues to be involved in efforts like Adapting to Rising Tides 
and other collaborative programs to focus on sea level rise impacts 
to the shoreline. 
 

5)  Finalize and distribute revised Bay Trail 
Design Guidelines 

Staff  The Bay Trail Design Guidelines & Toolkit was finalized in June 2016 
and distributed to shoreline partners. Significant positive feedback 
has been received, including San Jose using the guidelines as a 
model for their own and widespread encouragement to apply for 
state and national awards recognizing the document. 

6)  Explore new partnerships with public health, 
recreation, tourism and alternative 
transportation partners 

Staff / Board / Partners  If a Coastal Conservancy Explore the Coast grant is awarded it will 
support a region‐wide Bay Trail/Water Trail outreach effort on 
public transit. Discussions continue with Kaiser about expanded 
collaboration.  County‐specific gap reports are created for CMAs. 



2016 Priority Bay Trail Tasks – Status of Completion  
 

 

 

Task  Responsible Entity  Notes 

7)  Continue to implement the Bay Trail 
Marketing Plan 

Staff / Board  We continue to create new outreach tools and will focus on 
promoting the trail through these products and in new ways.  

8)  Install signs along all sections of existing Bay 
Trail 

Staff  Work continues with shoreline land managers (public & private) to 
install signs in locations recommended in the regional sign plan.   

9)  Expand Bay Trail regional art program 
Migrations throughout the Bay Area 

Staff  Migrations receives widespread interest from cities around the 
region. PG&E has awarded the Bay Trail non‐profit a $4,000 grant 
to support the project and we continue to apply for other grants.  
 

10)  Create new mobile phone audio tours along 
the Bay Trail 

Staff / Board / Partners  A second Explore the Coast grant is financing the creation of 5 new 
smart phone audio tours. Sears Point has a new tour and a $15,000 
Google grant will support one more. Momentum to create more 
tours is growing.  
 

11) Develop a strategy for analyzing the 
condition of the Bay Trail 

Staff / Partners  Now that the Bay Trail Design Guidelines & Toolkit are complete, 
we can initiate this task to create an existing conditions trail 
assessment.   
 



 
 

2016 Bay Trail and Water Trail Major Accomplishments 

Significant 2016 Bay Trail and Water Trail Accomplishments 

January  First 2016 episode of OpenRoad 
with Doug McConnell features 
Sears Point Restoration and new 

2.5‐mile Bay Trail segment 

 

  Water Trail reprints the popular 
Water Trail brochure and 

creates new Water Trail stickers 

 

  OpenRoad television segment 
with Doug McConnell features 
Bay Trail and Canogle smart 

phone tours 
 

 

  Explore the Coast grant awarded 
to support the completion of 
five more Canogle‐Bay Trail 

smart phone tours 

 

February  San Francisco Bay Flyway 
Festival 

 

  Water Trail featured in a Bay 
Nature article 

 



 
 

2016 Bay Trail and Water Trail Major Accomplishments 

  Revised Bay Trail map sets 
released to the public 

 
Copies provided to ABAG, MTC 

and BCDC Commissioners  

 

March  Bay Trail Design Guidelines & 
Toolkit approved by Bay Trail 

Board of Directors with revisions

 

  Four new Water Trail sites 
designated (3 in San Francisco 

and one in Foster City) at  
implementation meeting 

  

 

April  Bay Trail / Water Trail REI 
presentations at six stores 

around the region 

 

  Water Trail secured funding for 
interpretive mapping project in 

partnership with the San 
Francisco Estuary Partnership 

 

 

May  Bike to Work Day   

  Eden Landing Bay Trail +  
Water Trail launch 

 
4 miles of new Bay Trail and a 
new launch open at the Eden 
Landing Ecological Reserve in 

Hayward   



 
 

2016 Bay Trail and Water Trail Major Accomplishments 

  Sears Point Restoration Area 
Trail 
 

2.5 miles of new trail along 
Sears Point Wetland Restoration 
Area open to link to 2.5 miles of 

existing shoreline Bay Trail   

  Christie Avenue, Emeryville 
 

Completion of new trail along 
Christie Avenue between Powell 
and Shellmound streets closes a 

gap in Emeryville 

 

  350 Bay Trail miles complete! 

350 
  Presentation on the Water Trail 

Accessibility Plan at the national 
conference of the Society of 

Outdoor Recreation 
Professionals 

 

  Bay Area Open Space Council 
Conference held for the second 
year at Craneway Pavilion on 

Bay Trail in Richmond  

 

  Google completes resurfacing of 
4 miles of Bay Trail linking 

Sunnyvale and Mountain View. 
High‐profile dedication 

ceremony held in Sunnyvale.  

 
 

June  Bay Trail Design Guidelines & 
Toolkit released 

 

 



 

 

Jul

 

 

Septem

y 

mber 

2016 Bay T

Four new
designated
and Antioch

Water Tr
Division of B

2017‐201
Bo

Presented 
Design R

posit

Field work
new Bay 
audio to
Explore

Silicon Vall
released i
Ridge Trail 
Jose to d

emissions r
South Ba

Six new 
designate
Benicia, Re

City an
impleme

Trail and Wat

w Water Trail 
 in Alameda, 
h at impleme
meeting 

rail sites adde
Boating & Wa
18 Bay Area C
oating Maps 

 

Migrations to
eview Board
tive feedback

 

k begins to cre
Trail smart p
urs as part of
e the Coast gr

 

ley Trail Loop
n partnership
and the City 

demonstrate G
reductions alo
ay Trails netw

Water Trail s
d in San Fran
edwood City, 
nd Richmond 
entation mee

  

 
 

ter Trail Majo

sites 
Oakley 
ntation 

ed to 
terways 
Clean 

o BCDC 
with 
k 

eate 5 
hone 
f the 
ant 

p Study 
p with 
of San 
GHG 
ong the 
work  

sites 
cisco, 
Union 
at 

eting 

or Accomplish

 

 

 

 

 

hments 



 

 

 

 

Octo

 

 

ber 

2016 Bay T

29 Water Tr

Bay Trail
$15,000 Re
Sponsorship
to create 

a

Bay Trail
$4,000 PG&
Migrations r

Day on the 
Co

Helped pro
first annual 
1 with over 
agency res

Developed
Park Dis
Implem

Water Tra
grant f

Waterfron
match to th

Trail and Wat

rail sites desig

l Project awar
esilient Silicon
p grant from 
new smart p
audio tour  

 

l Project awar
&E grant to su
regional art p

Bay in Alviso 
ounty Park 

mote Save th
Bay Day on O
50 events an
solutions of su

d East Bay Re
strict Water T
mentation Pla

il awarded $1
from North B
nt Association
he SFEP map 

 
 

ter Trail Majo

gnated! 

rded 
n Valley 
Google 
hone 

rded 
upport 
program 

Marina 

he Bay’s 
October 
nd many 
upport 

gional 
Trail 
an 

10,000 
ay 
n as a 
project 

or Accomplish

 

hments 

29

 

9 

 



 
 

2016 Bay Trail and Water Trail Major Accomplishments 

 

  Bay Bridge East Span Pathway 
connects to Yerba Buena Island 

November ‐ December  Stay tuned for more to come … 

 



Proposed 2017 Priority Bay Trail Tasks  
 

 

Task  Responsible Entity Strategic Plan Objective  Notes 

1)  Provide funding to 
implementing agencies in order to 
significantly advance the 
development of the Bay Trail  

Staff  Objective 1 (a): Award and administer 
grants to implementing agencies for all 
aspects of Bay Trail development 

Manage active planning and construction 
projects awarded through the Coastal 
Conservancy block grants. 

2)  Explore outside funding sources 
that will continue to close gaps 
and substitute for grant funds that 
may no longer be available 

Staff / Board  Objective 2 (a): Seek options for 
leveraging public funding, i.e. 
transportation, recreation, health, 
climate change and sustainable 
communities 
 

Support the direction of Restoration 
Authority, Priority Conservation Area funds 
and One Bay Area Grants as well as potential 
new sources, i.e. GHG emission reduction, 
Regional Measure 3, Park Bond, etc. to Bay 
Trail projects. Work closely with CMAs to 
secure transportation funds for gap closures. 
 

3)  Expand partnerships with 
private corporations for specific 
gap closures and general support 

Staff / Board  Objective 2 (b): Explore opportunities for 
private funding and partnerships 

Develop new and strengthen existing 
partnerships with private corporations to 
support and fund Bay Trail completion.  
 

4)  Participate in sea level rise 
working groups around the region 
and provide input on climate 
action plans 

Staff / Partners  Objective 3 (a): Assist regional partners in 
assessing and addressing the impacts of 
sea level rise on the Bay Trail 

Continue participation in Adapting to Rising 
Tides and other collaborative programs to 
focus on sea level rise impacts to the Bay Trail 
and the shoreline. 
 

5) Develop a strategy for analyzing 
the condition of the Bay Trail 

Staff / Partners  Objective 3 (c): Refine the recommended 
Bay Trail design standards regarding 
width, signage, surfacing and other 
aspects of trail design and development 
 

Using the completed Bay Trail Design 
Guidelines & Toolkit, develop a strategy for 
assessing the condition of existing segments 
of Bay Trail, in coordination with BCDC and 
other partners.   

6)  Collaborate with resource 
protection agencies and open 
space advocates to balance the 
needs of conservation and new 
public access 

Staff / Partners  Objective 3 (e): Work with state and 
federal resource agencies and open 
space and recreation advocates and 
partners to integrate public access and 
resource protection goals and mandates 
 

With the recent passage of Measure AA and 
increased Priority Conservation Area funding, 
Bay Trail can play a lead role in collaborating 
with resource partners to support a balance 
of conservation and public access. 
 
 



Proposed 2017 Priority Bay Trail Tasks  
 

 

 

Task  Responsible Entity Strategic Plan Objective  Notes 

7) Contribute to trail planning 
efforts led by other agencies and 
organizations 

Staff / Partners  Objective 3 (f): Participate in trail 
planning efforts led by other agencies 

Continue participation in the Bay Area Trails 
Collaborative, Caltrans District 4 Bike Plan, 
and other significant trail planning efforts. 
 
 
 

8)  Explore new partnerships with 
public health, recreation, tourism 
and alternative transportation 
partners 

Staff / Board / 
Partners 

Objective 4 (f): Collaborate/ cultivate 
partnerships on trail issues of mutual 
interest and benefit such as alternative 
transportation, health and recreation, 
trails as a desirable feature of new 
developments, etc. 

The project can benefit from cultivating new 
partnerships and strengthening collaborative 
relationships in different fields. 

9)  Continue to implement the Bay 
Trail Marketing Plan 

Staff / Board  Objective 5 (a): Develop a Bay Trail 
Marketing Plan 

Building on the new website and exciting new 
outreach tools, expand awareness of the 
program with marketing strategies, including 
increased social media presence and 
strategies to reach new audiences.  
 

10)  Install signs along all sections 
of existing Bay Trail 

Staff / Partners  Objective 5 (c): Work with implementing 
agencies to ensure that all developed 
segments of the Bay Trail are signed, and 
in a consistent manner 
 

Work with all shoreline land managers (public 
& private) to install signs in locations 
recommended in the regional sign plan.   

11)  Expand Bay Trail regional art 
program Migrations throughout 
the Bay Area 

Staff / Partners  Objective 5 (d): Encourage individual and 
group events to draw attention to the 
Bay Trail 
 

Continue working to expand Migrations by 
reaching out to shoreline cities and seeking 
grant funds to support the initiative.  
 

12)  Create new smart phone 
audio tours along the Bay Trail 

Staff / Board / 
Partners 

Objective 5 (e): Develop attractive and 
effective promotional materials using 
traditional and new technologies 
 

Continue collaborations on new and 
expanded Bay Trail smart phone audio tours 
including private funding of tours.  
 


	1_11-07-16 Agenda.pdf
	2_Draft July 18 2016 minutes
	3_11_07_16 merger memo
	4_11_07_16 Regional Trails & Open Space Program Three-Pager
	5_2013-2018 Strategic Plan
	6_11_07_16 Priority tasks memo
	7_Completed 2016 Priority Tasks
	8_2016 Bay-Water Trail Accomplishments
	9_Proposed 2017 Priority Tasks

